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DEFINITIONS

ADDENDA Written or graphic instruments issued by the contracting officer prior to the execution of
the contract which modify or interpret the proposal documents by additions, deletions,
clarifications or corrections.

PROPOSAL A complete and properly signed document, proposing to do the work for the sum(s)
stipulated therein (enclosed in a separate envelope) supported by data called for by the
RFP documents.

PROPOSED CONTRACT

SUM
The sum stated in the proposal for which the proposer offers to perform the work
described in the specifications and other documents composing the RFP.

OFFEROR One who submits a proposal for contract with the Board for the work described in the
RFP.

PROPOSING DOCUMENTS Proposing documents include the Advertisement, Request For Proposals, Instructions to
Proposers, Proposal Form and the Proposed Contract Documents, including any addenda
prior to receipt of proposals.

All definitions set forth in the General Conditions of the contract for seryices or in other

contract documents and the Board's Procurement Regulations are applicable to the
proposing documents.

RFP Request For Proposals
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MODEL PROCUREMENT REGULATIONS

Model Procurement Regulations adopted by the Jefferson County Board of Education shall be deemed incorporated by
reference in these specifications as though quoted fully herein. In the event of any conflict between this RFP and the Model
Procurement Regulati6ns, the Regulations shall control. A copy of these regulations may be obtained by contacting the
Purchasing/Bid Department. It is the responsibility of the offeror to be familiar with these Regulations.
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PROHIBITION AGA!NST CONFLICTS OF INTEREST, GRATUITIES AND KICKBACKS"

(l) IT SHALL BE A BREACH OF ETHICAL STANDARDS FOR ANY EMPLOYEE WITH PROCUREMENT AUTHORITY TO
PARTICIPATE pIRECTLY IN ANY PR(CEEDING OR APPLICATION; REQUEST FOR RULING OR OTHER
DETERMINATION; CLAIM OR CONTROVERSY; OR OTHER PARTICULAR MATTER PERTAINING TO ANY CONTRACT,
OR SUBCONTRACT, AND ANY SOLICITATION OR PROPOSAL THEREFOR, IN WHICH TO HIS KNOWLEDGE: (A) HE, OR
ANY MEMBER OF HIS IMMEDIATE FAMILY HAS A FINANCIAL INTEREST THEREIN; OR (B) A BUSINESS OR
ORGANIZATION IN WHICH HE OR ANY MEMBER OF HIS IMMEDIATE FAMILY HAS A FINANCIAL INTEREST AS AN

OFFICER, DIRECTOR, TRUSTEE, PARTNER, OR EMPLOYEE, IS A PARTY; OR (C) ANY OTHER PERSON, BUSINESS, OR
ORGANIZATION WITH WHOM HE OR ANY MEMBER OF HIS IMMEDIATE FAMILY IS NEGOTIATING OR HAS AN

ARRANGEMENT CONCERNING PROSPECTIVE EMPLOYMENT IS A PARTY. DIRECT OR INDIRECT PARTICIPATION

SHALL INCLUDE BUT NOT BE LIMITED TO INVOLVEMENT THROUGH DECISION, APPROVAL, DISAPPROVAL,
RECOMMENDATION, PREPARATION OF ANY PART OF A PURCHASE REQUEST, INFLUENCING THE CONTENT OF ANY
SPECIFICATION OR PURCHASE STANDARD, RENDERING OF ADVICE, INVESTIGATION, AUDITING, OR IN ANY OTHER
ADVISORY CAPACITY.

(2) IT SHALL BE A BREACH OF ETHICAL STANDARDS FOR ANY PERSON TO OFFER, GIVE, OR AGREE TO GIVE ANY
EMPLOYEE OR FORMER EMPLOYEE, OR FOR ANY EMPLOYEE OR FORMER EMPLOYEE TO SOLICIT, DEMAND,
ACCEPT, OR AGREE TO ACCEPT FROM ANOTHER PERSON, A GRATUITY OR AN OFFER OF EMPLOYMENT, IN
CONNECTION WITH ANY DECISION, APPROVAL, DISAPPROVAL, RECOMMENDATION, PREPARATION OF ANY PART
OF A PURCHASE REQUEST, INFLUENCING THE CONTENT OF ANY SPECIFICATION OR PURCHASE STANDARD,
RENDERING OF ADVICE, INVESTIGATION, AUDITING, OR IN ANY OTHER ADVISORY CAPACITY IN ANY PROCEEDING
OR APPLICATION, REQUEST FOR RULING OR OTHER DETERMINATION, CLAIM OR CONTROVERSY, OR OTHER
PARTICULAR MATTER, PERTAINING TO ANY CONTRACT OR SUBCONTRACT
AND ANY SOLICITATION OR PROPOSAL THEREFOR.

(3) IT IS A BREACH OF ETHICAL STANDARDS FOR ANY PAYMENT, GRATUITY, OR OFFER OF EMPLOYMENT TO BE
MADE BY OR ON BEHALF OF A SUBCONTRACTOR {JNDER A CONTRACT TO THE PRIME CONTRACTOR OR HIGHER

TIER SUBCONTRACTOR OR ANY PERSON ASSOCIATED THEREWITH, AS AN INDUCEMENT FOR THE AWARD OF A
SUBCONTRACT OR ORDER.

(4) IT SHALL BE A BREACH OF ETHICAL STANDARDS FOR ANY PUBLIC EMPLOYEE OR FORMER EMPLOYEE
KNOWINGLY TO USE CONFIDENTIAL INFORMATION FOR HIS ACTUAL OR ANTICIPATED PERSONAL GAIN, OR THE
ACTUAL OR ANTICIPATED PERSONAL GAIN OF ANY OTHER PERSON.

NOTE: THIS PROHIBITION AGAINST CONFLICTS OF INTEREST AND GRATUITIES AND KICKBACKS SHALL BE

CONSPICUOUSLY SET FORTH IN EVERY LOCAL PUBLIC AGENCY WRITTEN CONTRACT AND SOLICITATION

THEREFOR.

?STATEMENT PURSUANT TO KRS 45A.990"

ANY EMPLOYEE OR ANY OFFICIAL OF THE BOARD OF EDUCATION OF JEFFERSON COtJNTY, KENTUCKY, ELECTIVE
OR APPOINTIVE, WHO SHALL TAKE, RECEIVE, OR OFFER TO TAKE OR RECEIVE, EITHER DIRECTLY OR INDIRECTLY,
ANY REBATE, PERCENTAGE OF CONTRACT, MONEY, OR OTHER THINGS OF VALUE, AS AN INDUCEMENT OR
INTENDED INDUCEMENT, IN THE PROCUREMENT OF BUSINESS, OR THE GIVING OF BUSINESS, FOR, OR TO, OR FROM,
ANY PERSON, PARTNERSHIP, FIRM OR CORPORATION, OFFERING, BIDDING FOR, OR IN OPEN MARKET SEEKING TO
MAKE SALES TO THE BOARD OF EDUCATION OF JEFFERSON COUNTY, KENTUCKY, SHALL BE DEEMED GUILTY OF A
FELONY AND UPON CONVICTION SUCH PERSON OR PERSONS SHALL BE P[JNISHED BY A FINE IN AN AMOUNT NOT

LESS THAN ONE THOUSAND DOLLARS ($1 ,000) AND NOT GREATER THAN TEN THOUSAND DOLLARS ($10,000) OR
DOUBLE THE GAIN FROM COMMISSION OF THE OFFENSE, WHICHEVER IS THE GREATER, OR BY IMPRISONMENT FOR
NOT LESS THAN FIVE (5) YEARS NOR MORE THAN TEN (10) YEARS, OR BOTH SO FINED AND IMPRISONED IN THE
DISCRETION OF THE JURY.

EVERY PERSON OFFERING TO MAKE, OR PAY, OR GIVE, ANY REBATE, PERCENTAGE OF CONTRACT, MONEY OR ANY
OTHER THING OF VALUE, AS AN INDUCEMENT OR INTENDED INDUCEMENT, IN THE PROCUREMENT OF BUSINESS,
OR THE GIVING OF BUSINESS, TO ANY EMPLOYEE OR TO ANY OFFICIAL OF THE BOARD OF EDUCATION OF
JEFFERSON COUNTY, KENTUCKY, ELECTIVE OR APPOINTIVE, IN HIS EFFORTS TO BID FOR, OR OFFER FOR SALE, OR
TO SEEI( IN THE OPEN MARKET, SHALL BE DEEMED GUILTY OF A FELONY AND SHALL BE PUNISHED BY A FINE IN
AN AMOUNT NOT LESS THAN ONE THOUSAND DOLLARS ($ 1,000) AND NOT GREATER THAN TEN THOUSAND
DOLLARS ($10,000) OR DOUBLE THE GAIN FROM COMMISSION OF THE OFFENSE, WHICHEVER IS THE GREATER, OR
BY IMPRISONMENT FOR NOT LESS THAN FIVE (5) YEARS NOR MORE THAN TEN (10) YEARS, OR BOTH SO FINED AND
IMPRISONED IN THE DISCRETION OF THE JURY, OR BY A FINE IN AN AMOUNT NOT TO EXCEED TWENTY THOUSAND
DOLLARS ($20,000) IF THE OFFENSE IS COMMITTED BY A F}R?fVJ OR CORPOR?ATION.
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INSTRUCTIONS AND CONDITIONS

ARTICLE 1 - INVITATION

1 . 1 Sealed proposals will be received by the Purchasing/Bid Department, Jefferson County Public Schools,
C. B. Young, Jr., Service Center, 3001 Crittenden Drive, Bldg. 1, Room 164, Louisville, Kentucky 40209, in
the manner and on the date hereinafter specified for the furnishing of all equipment and services necessary to
provide a Visitor Management Software Solution.

1.2 Additional copies of the R?FP may be obtained in the Purchasing/Bid Department at the above address,
between 9:00 a.m. and 4:00 p.m., Monday through Friday, or on the JCPS web site:
www.jefferson.kyschools.us prior to the date and time specified for opening.

ARTICLE 2 - PRE-BID CONFERENCE

2.1 A pre-bid conference shall be conducted to explain the procurement requirements. This conference
shall be open to the public and all prospective vendors receiving invitations.

2.2 The conference will be held at !!!!!Q ?., ? ?, Thursday, August 17, ? in room #142C,
C. B. Young, Jr., Service Center, 3001 Crittenden Drive, Louisville, Kentucky 40209. This will give
vendors the opportunity to become familiar with this RFP. Nothing stated at the pre-bid conference shall
change the request for proposal unless the change is made by written addenda.

2.3 Questions shall be submitted in writing or via email to Ken Popplewell, Director of Purchasing/Bids
(purchasingbids@jefferson.kyschools.us) no later than 4.;jjg ?, Tuesday, August 8, ?. All questions
will be addressed and read aloud at the pre-bid conference. Additional questions will be accepted at the
conference and none thereafter. All questions and responses will also be posted on the website where this
proposal' is displayed by ? p?, ?, August 18. ?.

ARTICLE 3 - DATE AND TIME OF CLOSING

3.1 The proposals will be received until LU!QQ a.m., Eastern Time, Thursday, August 31, ?. All proposals
must be received by the date and time designated in this proposal and none will be considered thereafter.

3.2 Any proposals received after scheduled time of opening will be returned unopened to the offeror.

ARTICLE 4 - SUBMISSION OF PROPOSALS

4.1 Proposals must be mailed or delivered on or before the RFP opening date and time to Ken Popplewell,
Director of Purchasing, C. B. Young, Jr., Service Center, 3001 Crittenden Drive, Bldg. 1, Room 164,
Louisville, Kentucky 40209, in special envelopes supplied with this Request for Proposal.

All proposals will be opened in the Purchasing/Bid Department Conference Room of the C. B. Young, Jr.,
Service Center, 3001 Crittenden Drive, Louisville, Kentucky 40209. The Board of Education cannot assume
the responsibility for any delay as a result of failure of the mail or delivery services to deliver proposals on
time. The proposals will not be opened to the public nor be disclosed to unauthorized persons prior to the
award of the contract. However, after award of the contract, all proposals shall be open to public inspection,
subject to any continuing prohibition on the disclosure of confidential data. Any quotes received after
scheduled time of opening will be returned unopened to the vendor.

Any unauthorized contact with any other official or employee in connection with this Request for
Proposat is prohibited and shall be cause for disqualification of the proposer.

4.2 Submit one (1 ) original and four (4) copies of the proposal. Information must be labeled and submitted in the
order identified in the RFP.

4.3 By submitting a proposal, the vendor is indicating that he/she has read, understands and agrees to all the
specifications outlined in this proposal.
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4.4 Each proposer by submission of proposal releases Jefferson County Public Schools, its Board of Education,
employees and agents from any claims arising out of, or in any way related to, the RFP process and the
selection of the provider.

ARTICLE s - QUOTATION FORMS
5.1 Quotations shall be submitted on the ? SCHEDULE FORMS attached hereto.

5.2 All blanks on the RFP form shall be filled in and all support data shall be furnished. (Failure to do so will
subject your quotation to rejection.)

5.3 The COST SCHEDULE ]? containing prices is to be submitted in the small envelope furnished with
this RFP.

5.4 The PROPOSAL ]? outlining the materials and services to be furnished is to be submitted in the %
envelope furnished with this RFP. Do not include any pricing on the PROPOSAL F?QBM. If included
this will be grounds for rejection.

5.5 The small sealed envelope may be placed inside the large envelope. Vendors may supply generic
envelopes. Each should be marked ?Proposal" (Large) or ?Quotation" (Small).

5.6 All prices and quotations must be in ink or typewritten. No pencil figures or erasures will be permitted.
Mistakes are to be crossed out and corrections inserted adjacent thereto and initialed by person signing quote.
Also, corrections made with correction tape or fluid are to be initialed.

Quote unit prices in whole numbers only to the nearest cent. Fractional pricing will not be considered.

5.7 Both the PROPOSAL FORM and ? SCHEDULE ? ? be signed. Signature ? be in ink
(no pencil). No proposal can be signed after being opened. Any unsigned proposal will be rejected. A
facsimile signature ? be initialed in ink.

ARTICLE 6 - TELEGRAPHIC OR FACSIMILE QUOTES
Telegraphic or facsimile quotes are prohibited; any and all bids received electronically shall be considered a
non-responsive quotation. Submittals (other than pricing) may be accepted by facsimile or email.

ARTICLE 7 - FAILURE TO RESPOND

Businesses that fail to respond to invitations for RFP or notices of availability on two (2) consecutive
procurements of similar items may be removed from the applicable mailing list.

ARTICLE 8 - AWARD OF CONTRACT

8.1 Upon ascertaining that the proposals received from the offerors constitute a competitive range wherein the
best interests of the school system shall be served, the contract will be awarded to the best-evaluated offeror
submitting a proposal after the application of any reciprocal preference for resident bidders as required by the
Kentucky Model Procurement Code.

8.2 Upon acceptance of a proposal by the School Board, the provider shall agree that service shall not be canceled
without a 90-day written notification submitted to the Director of Purchasing prior to the cancellation.

ARTICLE 9 - RECIPROCAL PREFERENCE

In accordance with KRS 45A.490 to 45A.494, a resident Offeror of the Commonwealth of Kentucky shall be
given a preference against a nonresident Offeror. In evaluatiBg proposals, Jefferson County Public Schools
will apply a reciprocal preference against an Offeror submitting a proposal from a state that grants residency
preference equal to the-preference given by the state of the nonresident Offeior. Residency and nonresidency
shall be defined in accordance with KRS 45A.494(2) and 45A.494(3:), respectively. Any Offeror claiming
Kentucky residency status shall submit with its proposal a notarized affidavit affinning that it meets the
criteria as set forth in the above referenced statute.
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ARTICLE 10 - EVALUATION CRITERIA

The Purchasing/Bid staff will first evaluate proposals as being responsive or non-responsive based on the
specifications provided. Second, a committee will evaluate proposals based on the information provided in
the vendor's proposal and any other information requested in the evaluation process. The criteria for
meeting the competitive range (and points for each) will determine the best evaluated proposal.

1. Software compliance with Technical Requirements 25 points

2. Software compliance with Functionality Requirements 25 points

3. System architecture and scaling 10 points

4. Verifiable References (3) 10 points

s. Cost 30 points

TOTAL POINTS 100 pts.

ARTICLE 11 - PERIOD OF CONTRACT

The actual period of the contract will be from September 26, 2017 or date of Board approval (whichever is
later) through September 25, 2018 with five (5) annual renewals at the option of both parties.

ARTICLE 12 - DISCUSSION OF PROPOSALS

12.1 The Contracting Officer may or may not conduct post negotiations of technical aspects of the proposals and/or
prices after reviewing all proposals submitted. These negotiations will involve only offerors who submit
proposals which fall within the competitive range.

12.2 The offeror's representative shall be qualified for answering and giving administrative and technical
clarifications relative to the proposal.

12.3 Offerors submitting proposals categorized as unacceptable or not falling within the competitive range shall be
so notified and said offerors will not be allowed to submit supplemental information amending the proposal.
If an offeror has not been notified that his proposal has been found unacceptable or not falling within the
competitive range, said offeror may submit supplemental information amending the proposal at any time until
the closing date established by the Contracting Officer.

ARTICLE 13 - TREATMENT OF PROPOSALS

13.1 Proposals will not be open to the public nor be disclosed to unauthorized persons prior to award of contract.
However, after award of contract, all proposals shall be open to public inspection, subject to any continuing
prohibition on the disclosure of confidential data which is designated as such in any proposal.

13.2 A contract may be awarded on the proposals as submitted or the Director of Purchasing may elect to negotiate
as to technical performance or price, or both, with offerors whose proposals fall in the competitive range as
defined in the RFP.

ARTICLE 14 - MODIFICATION OR WITHDRAWAL OF PROPOSAL

14.1 All proposals shall be valid for a period of sixty (60) days from the opening date to allow for tabulation,
study, negotiation, and consideration by the JCPS Board or its designee. The proposer may withdraw a
proposal, without prejudice, prior to the published opening date.

14.2 Prior to the closing date and time designated for receipt of proposals, proposals submitted early may be
modified or withdrawn only by notice to the party receiving proposals at the place and prior to the closing
time designated for receipt of proposals.

14.3 Any modification shall be so worded as not to reveal the amo?int of the original proposed sum. To do so will
render the modification and original proposal invalid.
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Withdrawn proposals may be resubmitted up to the closing time designated for the receipt of proposals
provided that they are then fully in conformance with these instructions to offerors.

ARTICLE 15 - INTERPRETATION OR CORRECTION OF RFP'S

15.1 Offerors shall promptly notify the Director of Purchasing of any ambiguity, inconsistency or error which they
may discover upon examination of the RFP's or of the local conditions.

14.4

15.2 Any interpretation, correction or change of the RFP will be made by addendum, issued by the Director of
Purchasing. Interpretations, corrections or changes in the RFP made in any other manner will not be binding
and offerors shall not rely upon such interpretations, corrections and changes.

ARTICLE 16 - ADDENDA

16.1 Addenda will be mailed or delivered to all who are known by the Director of Purchasing to have requested
and were furnished RFP's.

16.2 Copies of addenda will be made available for inspection wherever RFP's are on file for that purpose.

16.3 No addenda will be issued later than seven (7) days prior to the date of receipt of proposals, except for
postponing the date for receipt of proposals, or withdrawing the request for proposals.

16.4 Each offeror shall ascertain prior to submitting his proposal that he has received all addenda issued, and he
shall acknowledge their receipt on the RFP form.

ARTICLE 17 - RIGHT TO REJECT

17.1 The Jefferson County Board of Education, reserves the right to reject any and all proposals where the best
interests of the Board may be served, including the right to award a contract without any further discussion or
negotiation with anyone proposing these services. The Jefferson County Board of Education also reserves the
right to reject any proposal where evidence or information submitted by the vendor does not satisfy the Board
of Education that the vendor is qualified to carry out the details of the contract.

17.2 Grounds for the rejection of proposals include, but shall not be limited to:
(a) Failure of a proposal to conform to the essential requirements of the RFP.
(b) Submitting a proposal which does not conform to the specifications contained or referenced in the

RFP.

(c) Submitting a proposal imposing conditions which would modify the terms and conditions of the
RFP, or limit the offeror's liability to the Board on the contract awarded on the basis of such RFP.

(d) Submitting a proposal determined by the Director of Purchasing in writing to be unreasonable as to
prICe.

Proposals received from offerors determined not to be responsible offerors.
Proposals received from offerors determined not to be qualified based on current or on past
performance on JCPS projects.

(e)
(f)

ARTICLE 18 - RIGHT TO WAIVE TECHNICALITIES OR IRREGULARITIES

18.1 The right to waive technicalities and minor irregularities in proposals shall be maintained and preserved in the
case of all RFP's issued by the Board.

18.2 Technicalities or minor irregularities in proposals which may be waived when the Director of Purchasing
determines that it will be in the Board's best interest to do so, are mere matters of form not affecting the
material substance of proposal or some immaterial deviation from or variation in the precise requirements of
the RFP and having none, or a trivial or negligible effect on price, quality, quantity or performance of the
services being procured, the correction or waiver of which will not affect the relative standing of, or be
otherwise prejudicial to other offerors. The Contracting Officer may either give an offeror an opportunity to
cure any deficiency resulting from a technicality or minor irregularity in his proposal, or waive such
deficiency where it is advantageous to the Board to do so.
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ARTICLE 19 - CONFIDENTIAL DATA

19.1 Prospective offerors may designate those portions of the initial proposal which contain trade secrets or other
proprietary data which is to remain confidential.

If the contracting officer does not agree with the confidentiality of such data, or any portion thereof, he shall
inform the offeror in writing what portions of the proposal will be disclosed and that, unless the offeror
protests the determination of the contracting officer in the manner designated in Article IX (Legal and
Contractual Remedies) of the Bqard's Procurement Regulations, or unless the offeror withdraws his proposal
as provided in subparagraph 3.10.1 of those regulations, the portions of the proposal so determined to be
non-confidential will not be treated as confidential.

19.2

ARTICLE 20 - ACCEPTANCE BY BOARD

20.1 If awarded the contract, the prices wi 11 then be firm for the time period indicated in ARTICLE 11.

20.2 All prices and quotations must be in ink or typewritten. No pencil figures will be permitted. Mistakes are to
be crossed out and corrections inserted adjacent thereto and initialed by person signing quote. Also,
corrections made with correction tape or fluid are to be initialed.

20.3 It is the intent of the Director of Purchasing to award a contract in due course and after a reasonable proposal
evaluation period to the most responsive and responsible offeror(s) considering all requirements set forth in
the RFP, provided the acceptable proposed sum is within budgeted funds.

20.4 The right is reserved to reject any proposal where an investigation and evaluation of the offeror's
qualifications would give reasonable doubt that the offeror could perform prompt and efficient completion of
the work per the contract.

ARTICLE 21 - FORM OF (CONTRACT) AGREEMENT BETWEEN BOARD AND CONTRACTOR
Form To Be Used - Unless otherwise provided in the RFP, the agreement to contract will be written on the
standard form of agreement between Board and offeror bound with the RFP in the number of copies to be
specified by the Director of Purchasing.

ARTICLE 22 - TABULATIONS

Tabulations will be made by the Purchasing/Bid Department and each qualified offeror will be mailed a
formal tabulation after the Board has taken official action at the regularly scheduled Board meeting. Board
meetings are normally held twice a month. Offerors are requested not to call the Purchasing/Bid Department
for a tabulation.

ARTICLE 23 - PRICES

Prices quoted herein are to remain firm for the period of the contract. (See ARTICLE 11.)

ARTICLE 24 - K.O.S.H.A. STANDARDS

If applicable, all materials and services must meet or exceed K.O.S.H.A. (Kentucky Occupational & Safety
Health Act) Standards.

ARTICLE 25 - EXCUSE FOR NON-PERFORMANCE

The successful offeror(s) shall be excused from performing hereunder during the time and to the extent that
they are prevented from obtaining, delivering or p<>rforming in the customary way because of fire, strike,
partial or total interruption of, loss or shortage of transportation facilities, lockout, commandeering of raw
materials, products, plants or facilities by the government when satisfactory evidence thereof is presented to
the other party providing it is satisfactorily established that the non-pierformance is not due to the fault or
negligence of the party not performing.

ARTICLE 26 - PENALTIES

In case of default by the vendor, the Jefferson County Public Schools will follow procedures outlined in the
Board's Model Procurement Regulations regarding ten'nination for default, after which time the Board shall
procure a substitute contractor which shall operate under the remainder of the existing contract breached by
the contractor and the original contractor shall be liable for any and all excess costs incurred in the
procurement of the substitute contractor.
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ARTICLE 27 - TAXES

27.1 KENTUCKY SALES AND/OR USE TAX

(a) Proposers are informed that service contracts of the Board of Education of Jefferson County,
Kentucky are exempt from the provisions of the Kentucky Sales and/or Use Tax. Offeror
will be furnished proper tax exemption certificates upon request.

(b) All adjustments and allowances for the current sales and/or use tax shall be provided for in the
quoted amount as no adjustments will be permitted and/or made after the fact.

27.2 FEDERAL EXCISE TAX

The Board of Education of Jefferson County, Kentucky is entitled to exemption from Federal Excise Tax.
All proposers or contractors shall take this into consideration in their bid.

27.3 DEDUCTIONS FOR TAXES, WORKER'S COMPENSATION, ETC.
(a) The contractor will be required to accept liability for payment of all payroll taxes or deductions

required by local, state and federal law.

(b) Worker's Compensation Insurance shall be carried to the full amount as required by Kentiicky
Statutes.

ARTICLE 28 -NON-DISCRIMINATION

During the performance of this Contract, the Seller agrees as follows:

28.1 The Seller shall not discriminate against any employee, applicant or subcontractor because of age, color,
creed, handicap condition, marital or parental status, national origin, race, sex, veteran status, political
opinion or affiliation. The Seller shall take affirmative action to ensure that applicants are employed and that
employees are treated during employment without regard to their age, color, creed, handicap condition,
marital or parental status, national origin, race, sex, sexual orientation, gender identity, gender expression,
veteran status, political opinion or affiliation. Such action shall include, although not limited to, the
following: Employment, upgrading, demotion or transfer; recruitment or recruitment adveitising; layoff or
terrnination; rates of pay or other forms of compensation; and selection for training, including
apprenticeship. The Seller agrees to post in conspicuous places notices setting forth the provisions of this
Equal Opportunity clause.

28.2 The Seller shall in all solicitations and/or advertisements for employees placed by or on behalf of the Seller,
state that all qualified applicants shall receive consideration for employment without regard to age, color,
creed, handicap condition, marital or parental status, national origin, race, sex, sexual orientation, gender
identity, gender expression, veteran status, political opinion or affiliation.

28.3 The Seller shall cause any subcontractor engaged to perform any services required by this Contract to
include this Equal Opportunity clause in all solicitations, advertisements and employment practices it shall
perform.

ARTICLE 29 - UTILIZATION OF MINORITY VENDORS

The utilization of minority vendors and subcontractors are encouraged, wherever possible, on public
contracts. The contractor should make full efforts to locate minority business persons. For assistance in
identifying minority offerors and subcontractors, contact the Kentucky Office for Minority Business
Enterprises, 2316 Capitol Plaza Tower, Frankfort, Kentucky 40601, or Office of Equal Opportunity Contract
Compliance, New Capitol Annex Building, Frankfort, Kentucky 40601.

ARTICLE 30 - SERVICES EVALUATION

If it is later established that said services fail to comply to these specifications and conditions, the contract
will be canceled. This will be done only after offeror has been furnished (in writing) concerns regarding
questionable deficiencies, and the problems have not been resolved.

ARTICLE 31 - REIMBURSEMENT/COSTS

JCPS will not reimburse offerors for costs associated with the preparation, submission or requested
clarification of any proposal.
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ARTICLE 32 - DELIVERY

? contractor( s) ? not add fuel surcharges or other miscellaneous charges to bid prices or invoices.
All ? MUST be included in your bid ?.

ARTICLE 33 - MISC.

Smoking or the use of any tobacco product is not permitted on any JCPS property. This prohibition includes
all buildings and grounds and is in effect 24 hours a day, 7 days a week.

ARTICLE 34 - DATA SECURITY AND BREACH PROTOCOLS

Vendors that are provided by Jefferson County Public Schools with access to Personal Inforrnation as defined
by and in accordance with Kentucky's Personal Information Security and Breach Investigation Act, KRS
61 .931, et seq. (the "Act"), or that collect and maintain Personal Information on behalf of Jefferson County
Public Schools, shall secure and protect the Personal Information aHd shall respond to any security breach
relating to the Personal Information by, without limitation, complying with all requirements applicable to
nonaffiliated third parties set forth in the Act and all requirements of this Article 34.

"Personal Information? is defined in accordance with KRS 61 .931(6) as "an individual's first name or first
initial and last name; personal mark; or unique biometric or genetic print or image, in combination with one or
more of the following data elements:
(a) An account, credit card number, or debit card number that, in combination with any required security
code, accesscode or password, would permit access to an account;
(b) A Social Security number;
(c) A taxpayer identification number that incorporates a Social Security number;
(d) A driver's license number, state identification card number or other individual identification number
issued by an agency;
(e) A passport number or other identification number issued by the United States government; or
(f) Individually Identifiable Information as defined in 45 C.F.R. sec. 160.013 (of the regulations under the
Health Insurance Portability and Accountability Act), except for education records covered by the Family
Education Rights and Privacy Act, as amended 20 U.S.C. sec 1232g."

As provided in KRS 61 .931(9)(a), a "security breach" means " 1 . The unauthorized acquisition, distribution,
disclosure, destruction, manipulation, or release of unencrypted or unredacted records or data that
compromises or the agency (Jefferson County Public Schools) or the nonaffiliated third party (the vendor)
believes may compromise the security, confidentiality, or integrity of personal information and result in the
likelihood of harm to one (1 ) or more individuals; or 2. the unauthorized acquisition, distribution, disclosure,
destruction, manipulation, or release of encrypted records or data containing personal information along with
the confidential process or key to ?mencrypt the records or data that compromises or the agency (Jefferson
County Public Schools) or the nonaffiliated third party (the vendor) reasonably believes may compromise the
security, confidentiality, or integrity of personal information and result in the likelihood of harm to one (1 ) or
more individuals."

As provided in KRS 61.931(5), a "nonaffiliated third party" means "Any person that (a) has a contract or
agreement with an agency (Jefferson County Public Schools); and receives personal information from the
agency (Jefferson County Public Schools) pursuant to the contract or agreement.?

The vendor hereby agrees to cooperate with the Jefferson County Public Schools and the Commonwealth in
complying with the response, mitigation, correction, investigation, and notification requirements of the Act
and this Article 34. Without limitation of the foregoing, the vendor agrees to the terms set forth below.

The vendor shall notify as soon as possible, but within seventy-two (72) hours, the Jefferson County Public
Schools of a determination of or knowledge of a security breach relating to the Personal Information in the
possession of the vendor, unless the exception set forth in KRS 61 .932(2)(b)2 applies and the vendor abides
by the requirements set forth in that exception. Notice shall be sent to the Jefferson County Public Schools
Chief Business Officer, 3332 Newburg Road, Louisville, KY 40218, Phone (502) 485-3011, Fax: (502) 485-
3674. The notice to JCPS shall include all information the vendor has with regard to the security breach at the
time of notification.
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The vendor hereby agrees to report, immediately and within twenty-four (24) hours, to the offices of the
Jefferson County Public Schools Chief Financial Officer, Chief Operations Officer, Chief Business Officer,
Director of Information Technology and Manager of Payroll and Cash Management of any known
reasonably believed instances of missing data, data that has been inappropriately shared, or data taken off site.
The vendor hereby agrees that the Jefferson County Public Schools may withhold payment(s) owed to the
vendor for any violation ofthe Act or this Article 34.

In the event of a securi ty breach relating to Personal Information, the vendor hereby agrees to undertake a
prompt and reasonable investigation of any breach as required by KRS 61 .933(1 )(a)2 including all
requirements of KRS 61.932(l)(b), and for providing notices required by KRS 61 .933( 1 )(b) subject to the
provisions of KRS 61 .933(3). In such event, the vendor will satisfy the notification deadlines in KRS
61 .933(1 )(b) but the vendor will ensure that Jefferson County Public Schools has the opportunity to review
and approve all notices to be sent. Jefferson County Public Schools will have the opportunity to review any
report produced as the result of the investigation. The vendor will be fully responsible for all costs associated
with compliance by the vendor and Jefferson County Public Schools with the provisions of KRS 61 .931 et
seq., and any other Federal or state law including the law of any other state, as the result of a security breach
hereunder.

If the vendor is required by federal law or regulation to conduct security breach investigations or to make
notifications of security breaches, or both, as a result of the vendor' s unauthorized disclosure of one (1) or
more data elements of Personal Information that is the same as one (1 ) or more of the data elements of
Personal Information listed in KRS 61.931(6)(a) to (f), the vendor shall meet the requirements of the Act by
providing to Jefferson County Public Schools a copy of any and all reports and investigations relating to such
security breach investigations or notifications that are required to be made by federal law or regulations. This
paragraph shall not apply if the security breach includes the unauthorized disclosure of data elements that are
not covered by federal law or regulation but are listed in KRS 61.931 (6)(a) to (f).

In accordance with KRS 61 .932(2)(a), the vendor shall implement, maintain, and update security and breach
investigation procedures that are appropriate to the nature of the information disclosed, that are at least as
stringent as the security and breach investigation procedures and practices established by the Commonwealth
Office of Technology:

http ://techno lo gy.ky . gov/c iso/Page s/Inforrnation S ecuri tyPol ic ies , StandardsandProcedures.aspx

and that are reasonably designed to protect the Personal Information from unauthorized access, use,
modification, disclosure, manipulation, or destruction.

Student Data Security

Pursuant to KRS 365.734 (Ho?ise Bill 232 (2014)), if the vendor is a cloud computing service provider (as
defined in KRS 365.734( 1)(b) as "any person or entity other than an educational institution that operates a
cloud computing service," which is defined in KRS 365.734( l)(a) as "a service that provides, and that is
marketed and designed to provide, an educational institution with account-based access to online computing
services?), or, through service to Jefferson County Public Schools, becomes the equiyalent of a cloud
computing service provider, the vendor does further agree that:

a The vendor shall not process student data for any purpose other than providing, improving, developing,
or maintaining the integrity of its cloud computing services, unless the vendor receives express permission
from the student's parent. The vendor shall work with the student's school and district to determine the best
method of collecting parental permission. KRS 365.734 defines "process? and "student data".

a With a written agreement for educational research, the vendor may assist Jefferson County Public Schools to
conduct educational research as permitted by the Family Education Rights and Privacy Act of 1 974, as
amended, 20 U.S.C. s.ec. 1232g.

* Pursuant to KRS 365.734, the vendor shall not in any case process student data to advertise or facilitate
advertising or to create or correct an individual or household profile for any advertisement purposes.

* Pursuant to KRS 365.734, the vendor shall not sell, disclose, or otherwise process student data for any
commercial purpose.
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a Pursuant to KRS 365.734, the vendor shall certify in writing to the Jefferson County Public Schools that it
will comply with KRS 365.734(2).

ARTICLE 35 - FINAL DISPOSITION OF JCPS DATA

The Contractor agrees, upon termination, cancellation, expiration, or other conclusion of this Contract JCPS
data will be made available to JCPS in the format requested by the Board. The Contractor also agrees, that
upon termination, cancellation, expiration, or other conclusion of this Contract, and after making JCPS data
available to JCPS in the format requested by the Board, the Contractor shall erase, destroy, and render
unreadable and infeasible for recovery or re-use, all JCPS data, regardless of its format, mode of storage or
location, including such data that may have been provided to the contractor's employees, subcontractors,
agents, or other affiliated persons or entities, according to the standards enumerated in NIST Publication 800-
88, and certify in writing that these actions have been completed, within 30 days of the termination,
cancellation, expiration, or other conclusion of this Contract, or within 7 days of receiving the written request
of the Chief Financial Officer or the Chief of Data Management, Planning and Program Evaluation of JCPS,
whichever shall come first.

ARTICLE 3 6 - TERMINATION

Contracts may be terminated by the Board for default or convenience as outlined in the Procurement
Regulations.

ARTICLE 37 - EXCLUSMTY

The school district agrees to use the designated contract supplier(s) as an exclusive source for the various
items and services as listed herein as well as for comparable substitutes and supplemental items. The only
anticipated exceptions may be in time of emergency or if awarded contractor is unable to provide items or
services as required.

ARTICLE 38 - ACCESS TO RECORDS

All contracts over $10,000 awarded by the School Food Authority, must include a provision to the effect that
the School Food Authority, the State Agency, USDA, the Comptroller General of the United States, or any of
their duly authorized representatives, shall have access to any books, documents, papers, and records of the
contractor which are directly pertinent to that specific contract, for the purpose of making a?idit, examination,
excerpts, and transcriptions.

ARTICLE 39 - PENALTY

The designated supplier(s) reciprocally agrees to provide total requirements as listed herein, thereby
minimizing occurrences when a school district may have to seek other interim product sources. Failure to
deliver 1 00oA of the items on this list-within 48 hours-shall be considered a default.

A successful bidder must have proven (or believable) record of service, particularly with respect to delivering
all items on a regularly scheduled basis, at favorable prices. A distributor may be designated as unacceptable
if the requirements listed herein have been previously violated and/or poor communications exist between the
seller and the school district.

Modifications, additions, or changes to the terms and conditions of this Invitation to Bid may be a cause for
rejection of a bid. Bidders are requested to submit all bids on the school District's official forms. Bids
submitted on company forms may be rejected.

ARTICLE 40 - CERTIFICATION REGARDING DEBARMENT AND SUSPENSION

In accordance with Federal Acquisition Regulation 52.209-s, the vendor shall certify, by submitting the
solicitation, that to the best of its knowledge and belief, the vendor and/or its principals is (are) not presently
deban-ed, suspended, proposed for debarment, or declared ineligible for the award of contracts by any State or
Federal agency.

"Principals", for the purposes of this certification, means officers, directors, owners, partners, and persons
having primary management or supervisory responsibilities within a business entity (e.g., general manager,
plant manager, head of subsidiary, division, or business segment, and similar positions.)

13



ARTICLE 41- COST REIMBURSABLE CONTRACTS

The following conditions apply to cost reimbursable contracts:
Allowable costs will be paid from the nonprofit school food service account to the contractor net of
all discounts, rebates and other applicable credits accruing to or received by the contractor or any
assignee under the contract, to the extent those credits are allocable to the allowable portion of the
costs billed to the school food authority;
The contractor must separately identify for each cost submitted for payment to the school food
authority the amount of that cost that is allowable (can be paid from the nonprofit school food service
account) and the amount that is unallowable (cannot be paid from the nonprofit school food service
account);
The contractor must exclude all unallowable costs from its billing documents and certify that only
allowable costs are submitted for payment and records have been established that maintain the
visibility of unallowable costs, including directly associated costs in a manner suitable for contract
cost determination and verification;

The contractor's determination of its allowable costs must be made in compliance with the applicable
Departmental and Program regulations and Office of Management and Budget cost circulars;
The contractor must identify the amount of each discount, rebate and other applicable credit on bills
and invoices presented to the school food authority for payment and individually identify the amount
as a discount, rebate, or in the case of other applicable credits, the nature of the credit. If approved by
the State agency, the school food authority may permit the contractor to report this information on a
less frequent basis than monthly, but no less frequently than annually;
The contractor must identify the method by which it will report discounts, rebates and other
applicable credits allocable to the contract that are not reported prior to conclusion of the contract; and
The Contractor must maintain documentation of costs and discounts, rebates and other applicable
credits, and must furnish such documentation upon request to the school food authority, the State
agency, or the Department.

*

*

*

*

*

Prohibited expenditures. No expenditure may be made from the nonprofit school food service account for any
cost resulting from a cost reimbursable contract that fails to include the requirements of this section, nor may
any expenditure be made from the nonprofit contractor receiving payments in excess of the contractor's actual
net allowable costs.

ARTICLE 42 - OTHER CONDITIONS

The United States Department of Agriculture (USDA) requires vendor(s) awarded contract(s) on National
School Lunch Program (NSLP), National School Breakfast Program (NSBP) or associated Nutrition Services
contracts to certi fy and assure that they will comply with all of the applicable requirements of Items 1-11 as
listed below. Vendor(s) also agrees these items may be amended from time to time, including adding
appropriate provisions to all contracts between JCPS and for-profit Contractors.

All awarded Vendors/Contractors:

(1) Mustbeinstrictcompliancewiththeadministrative,contractual,orlegalremediesasoutlinedinModel
Procurement (Article IX Legal and Contractual Remedies), where contractors violate or breach contract teri'ns, and
provide for such sanctions and penalties as may be appropriate. (Contracts more than the simplified acquisition
threshold)

(2) Are subject to termination for cause and for convenience by the grantee or subgrantee as outlined in Model
Procurement (Article VI Contract Modification and Terrnination Section 6.5) (All contracts in excess of $10,000)

(3) AgreetocomplywithExecutiveOrderll246ofSeptember24,1965,entitled"EqualEmploymentOpportunity,"
as amended by Executive Order 11375 of October 13, 1967, and as supplemented in Department of Labor
regulations (41 CFR Chapter 60). (All construction contracts awarded in excess of $10,000 by grantees and their
contractors or subgrantees)

(4) AgreetocomplywiththeCopeland"Anti-Kickback"Act(18U.S.C.874)assupplementedinDepartmentof
Labor regulations (29 CFR Part 3). (All contracts and subgrants for construction or repair)
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(5) Agree to comply with the Davis-Bacon Act (40 U.S.C. 276a to 276a-7) as supplemented by Department of Labor
regulations (29 CFR Part 5). (Construction contracts in excess of $2000 awarded by grantees and subgrantees
when required by Federal grant program legislation)

(6) AgreetocomplywithSectionsl03andl07oftheContractWorkHoursandSafetyStandardsAct(40U.S.C.
327-330) as supplemented by Department of Labor regulations (29 CFR Part 5). (Construction contracts awarded
by grantees and subgrantees in excess of $2000, and in excess of $2500 for other contracts which involve the
employment of mechanics or laborers)

(7) Agree to retain all required records for three (3) years after final payment is made by the grantees or subgrantees
and all other pending matters are closed.

(8) Must be in strict compliance for contracts in excess of $150,000, including subcontracts and subgrants, with all
applicable standards, orders, or requirements issued under section 306 of the Clean Air Act (42 U.S.C. 740-
7671q), and the Federal Water Pollution Act amended (33 U.S.C. 1251-1387) and the contractor must agree to
report all violations to the Federal awarding agency and the Regional Office of the Environmental Protection
Agency (EPA),

(9) Agreetocomply,forcontractsinexcessof$lO0,000,withtheByrdAnti-LobbyingAmendment(31U.S.C.1352)
and the New Restrictions on Lobbying and annually sign and submit to JCPS Nutrition Services the Ceitificate
Regarding Lobbying and, if applicable, the Disclosure of Lobbying Activities (Form SF-LLL).
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JEtl-'l-.RM)N ('O€a:s la'i €'l Hl.l( S(1400l.S

( O%TR,?CI l;OR I IIE l)RO(t Rl:)H':' i OF Pl<Ol't:ssIO'%.'(L Sl.Rl l( 12S

THIS CONTRA(1 FOR l)ROC[.iREMEN'r 01: PROFESSIONAI SE.RVICES (hcrcinal'tcr
a'Contrict") is cntcrcd into between k JEFFERSON COUNTY F30ARD OF EDL:C:lTiON
(hcrcinaftcr "Boarda'), a political subdivision of the Commossssealth ot' Kentucky, wilh ils principal
placc ot- txisincss at ?i33: %ewburg Road. Louisvillc. Kcntucky 40218 and ?? -? (liercinal-tcr
=Contractor"), iiith its principal placc of busiiiess at ?? ? ??.

l

!i llNESSETll:

WHERE.AiS, tbc Board desires to Binxux the paniculJ bers'ics?:0;Th,$onsrMir, which
arc morc fully dcfincd below: and

Wl iEREAS. Contractor has held itxlr uul to be compctem * "<?ihle nr perf?imiing
the seravices contracted taor herein:

NOI'!i', l'HERF.F()RF., itl consideratioti ola $..',.mutual ffiliS(? and agnccments
iicreinaiser set (orth. the F3oard and Contractor il$r aa4#es") ugree as follow;:

IRII('Ll- l

Enlire Agrecment: '.'lfflelJlllellM

This Contract is the emire agxeay'? taiaisseen the I)arties and supersedes an> anJ all
agreements. representations and negoti?s, either'onil or uaritten, betwcen thc Par€ics bc(orc thc
crrccsisc datc of this Contmct. This (i4* may niN be amciided or modilied except in writing as
pmvidcd in Aniclc S'ill. This ('oixuacl is supl>!cmcnted by thc Board's l)rocuremem Regulmions
curremly in cffeci (hcrcinafter "scgiaaaion+") that auc incorporatcd by rercrtancc into and made a part
of this Contraci. In the event ts( a codnffi@nsees* any provision of this Contract and any provisioris
or lhe Regulalions, lhc Regulations >ball prexJil.

l

ARHCLE?I

Scrvioes

Contracti9o rx:rr$: thc rollou ing scrviccs (hcrcimficr a'Services") or a quality and in
a manner thai is within thc,hi? standards ot- ('cmtractor's pmf'ession cir business. Thc Scn iocs arc
as rolkiws'

ARTiCt.F m

Compcnsation

'Ilie Board shall pay Contnictor xhc total aniunt sla(cd bclow (hcrcinaftcr "Contract
;'(motiiii'). rhe C ontraci z'(mount shall bc paid in a lump sum upon completion of thc Scniccs. unless
a schcdulc ota pmgrcss pa>mcnis is statcd below. Thc Comract Amoum shall be for total pcrtorniance I

l

l
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or this Contraqt and includcs all rcc>, cosls and cxpcnscs jncurrc3 by Ccmt'ractcir includiiig btit not
limited tci labor, m;;tcrials, tayes, profit. 4iserhead. travel. iiisuraiice, subcomracior <osts aiiij oshcr
costs. unless othenvise stated belosv. 'l'o receis'e payment. Ccmtrictor nmst submit an iieniizcd inyoicc
or invoiccs. Ir proycss pa>mcnts arc ;mthorizcd, cach invoicc nmst spccify lhc actual work
qr(onned. if payment of costs or expestses is authorized. receipts must he attached lo the imoicc.

Qmtracl ,-'(mounl: l

l)rogress Payments (il- not applicable. inscrt N.'/l ):

l
l

Costsr"Expesises (if not applicable inscn N.yzVl: N.?.A unless othenvisc slatcd williin Bid

;(25ARTI(?l[ IV
l'crin oR'onlracl

k'?
Contractor shall hcgin pcrfaom:mcc ota thc Scrviccs on % and shall complclc thc

. unless this comract is yfflffl%d sieii in ,-%nide sill.Sen iccs no Ialcr lhan

!QJ.lRn(l

Perfomiaiice ot' Servii

Thc smiccs shall be pert'ormed try [4 4em shall conlrachir subconiract

with wry otkier pcrson to aid in thc complcticin Th s%c prior writtcn approval of thc
Contrucl .%lministralor Jcfincd below. ? ? ??Th

Comractor shall appoint onc ho rcsponsiblc for rcporting to thc Board on allr ?WScrvices pcrtaormcd undcr the terms of%ntra4 who shall be available taor consultation with
[1tkie C ontracl z'(dmiiiistmtor.

('ontractor is an mdcpc&"!?t an employee. Conlractor is responsible taor the?*'lpa>tncnt ot- all federal, state § 4 ta.tes and providiiig unemployment insurancc and
6eragKl%'orkers ctsmpensa(t(J?eragP cmplo)ccs. Contractor shall proxidc all cqtiipmem,

r?maieriiils and sup?ssar> laor?nnaiicc of thc Sniccs.

('ontract hal during lhc €crm ol- this Conlract ccimpl> ix'ith all iipplicable laws,

rcgulations. rulWs. Ntlractor shall ohtaiii arid keep tri taorce all license's'. permits!. arid

Z'Tr the pcffiance ota the Sen'ices.(crtijicatcs llecl

r
C omractor agrcs'!? luirmless. indemnita>, ;inJ delend the Board sind ils membetx. agcms,

and emplci>'ees fnmi any and all claims or losscs accruing or rcsulliiig (rom inj ur>. damagc. *ir dcath of
;m>' person. f-imt or corporation. includiiig thc Coritraclor himsclfa, in conncction with thc pcrformancc
cd' this Contracl. Contractor ;dso agrees kl hold harmless. indcmnilay, and dcfend lhe 13oard rim ils
rncmbcrs. agems, and employees t-mm airy amJ all claims or loises incurrcd by asi> supplier.
contmclor. 6r subcontractor tumishing v;ork. scrviccs. or matcrials lo Contmclcir in connection with
thc pcrt'ormance olathis Contmcl. 'rhis provision siin'ivcs terrnin:iiion citothis ('onlriict.

Fund Source:

ltnless ss'aived in writing by thc ('onsract :'(dministrator, Comractor shall maiiitain during thc
tcrm of this Contract policics of primar>: insurancc covcring thc rollowing risks arid in at least the

Th
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following aiiiounts: conmiercial gcncral liiibilit), including bodily injury, propcrly damagc. pemmal
injury, ptoducU and comp?etcd openitions, and contractual, 51.000,000: and automobile liability.
S l,(XX),000. ContnKtor shall furnish to Ihc Conlnicl Administralor ccnificatcs of insurance ei'iJcncing
this covcraHc and naming the Board as an additional insurcd. Additionall> . Comracscir sttall riaintain
ssorkcrs cornpcnsalion c<>vcragc with limits rcqiiircd by Jaw: arid professional errors aid omissions
coveragc with minimum limits of Sl,(XXIOOO Contractor shall funiish ccnirxcstcs of instirancc
cvidcncing this coveragc to thc Comracs Administrator

.A*R IICLE V?

l:qual (?)ppirtunity

During ihc performaricc or this Conmci, Contraclor agJc('s tt@t Consractor shall not
discriminate against an>' cmploycc, applicant or subcontractor bccause 4or, national origin,
agc. rcligion, maritaj or parental status, pciliiical affiliations or bclicfs, @. sefi 4icntaiion. gender
ithtity, gender exprcssion. vctcran %latus. gcnctic inromiatiig,or disa@)[4'>p'l tl4§aomract :srrw>unt
is paid from faleral runds, this Contract is subjcct to Exect$r % 61i@cmbcr 24, ]%5
am in such cvent she Equal Opportunity C lause set forlh in 41 "% F:!?&Y?gulations 6Q- l 4 is
hereby incorpiirated h>r reference into this Contraci as ita set rorih in-%iii.

l

ARTICIE Lall

Prohibition otaConflicb 61' Intcie4

It shall be a breach or this Contract ror Contraclor x6 ? l:l act which is a violation or tbc
provisions of Aniclc Xl or Uhc Rcgulations cntitlad ", ?ics anJ-Skidards or Conduct," or to assist or
participate in or knowingly beneJit rrom an>' act bi .lTl'! ete4sksyce or ? Board which is a iaiolation ota
such provisions.

ART(('l,E  111

C.hanss
r

The Board and Couiraaor. ma; 'aLnn% timc. by mutual agreement set foiih in a written
adtk'andum, makc changes in thc de€TiliU&i uj' thc Serviccs; im scopc of thc Scrvicq; arxi thc C ontract
Amourit. The Contract AJiiiiiii?tor,aiJyfonu;ictor may. at any time, by muitial agreement set forth
in a writtcn addendulni. luakc chffiss?, in thc timc wmiir. which the Sen'ices arc to :x pertormcd: thc
schcdulc or Pmgr?%b; and $? '1 ermmation ot- the ( aontract.

,'(R I ICl.l- IX

Tcrmiii;iricm (or ('onvcnicricc of thc Board

The BiaatJ nla:1' I?li:.e'this Conti;a;t iii whole or iii part at any lime by girt iiig writler: no€ice
10 Contraclor of such lciiit!:ll;on and specit>'ing the etTccti%'e dale lhercola, at Ieast thirl7 (30) (la)'s
bel'orc tha specilied eelaecti*ie dase. The 13oard shall compensate (ontractor tor Sen'iccs satisfactiirily
pertiimned through ihc cffccliiac datc or icrrnination

.-%R [1(l.L X

'l errninatioii for Dcfault

'I hc Board may, by writicn noticc of ricfiiult to ('ontractor. terminatc thc whole or any part of
this Contract. ir Contract6r brcachcs any proviiicin of this C ontract. or so fai}s .io make proy,ress as to
endanger per(ornsance of dirts Contract, and iti cit?icr of these circuinsta.qces. does not cure the hreach

3
l
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or failure within a period of fivc (5) days after reccipt or notice spicifying thc brcach or failure. In the
evem 6r termination for default, the Board may sccure the required scrviccs from miother contractor.
If the cost to thc Board excccds thc cost of otdaining the Services undcr this Comract, Con?r shal)
pay the additional cost. Thc rights and remcdies of tbe Board provided in this Article shall not bc
exclusive and are in addition to any othe rights and remedies providcd by law or under this Contraci.

ARTtCLE X?

Disputes

Any differericcs or disagreements arising between thc Partics conccrning the rights or Iiabilitics
under this Contract, or any modifying instrument entered into under Article % this Contract, shall
hp wcnlv? thrtsuoh ihta rirrsrrAnvrbc cs iiiit ;n t'ho Tlnnsilat;tsnc ?PJm

a
be resolved through thc proccdures set out in thc Regulations.

i rr

rx>I

k/iARI?CLE Xl? i

Uiiless iiaived in iianhng b) :":=: ::i,:?',. oimaship in
%and lbe rights to any reports, research data, creativekd?rdings, graphicaj

representations or other works or a similar nature (herei4q")9uccd or delivered by
contractor under this contrac€. contracfor agl'ees that tMms jor hire" and contractorassigns all right, title and interest in the worh; to the 4y ? ,4

Any reports, information, data, etc. given to bled by Contraaor under this
Contract shall -not be made avaifable to any-indi a - a Contractor withotn lhe yior
written approval of the Board. Provided, rothi4 %ma$ to violatc thc provisions
of any Kcntucky or Federal statutc or rcgulat? req$rtir;of infaormntion.

?M
4anc?
?(;ami?tor

appoim 2b$tor for the purposes of daily administrativeThc Board shall

dccision-making pertaining to n pi>ra!'actor and the contxact Admimstrator disagree 00
any circumstance or set of r%dffi? administration or execution of this Contract, the
Boud shall resolve tJr aftf r4[iauJ?y ciiher the Comract Administrator or the comractorin the mann+-p#-ih-e- 4 If th; Board fails-to give-notice to conffltor or thein the manner pr? ttie Redi
appoinimentof ? 2&sa?tracl'?H?the Contract administraror sWl be the tiouaos chicr
Financial Officerl ' ???

L j
? -?

l

rJ ARTICLE XIV

Right to Auditr

j
w

The Board shall have the right to inspect and audit all accounting rcports, books or rewrds
which oorwcem the pcrformance of the Serviccs. Inspection shall take place during normal business
hours art Contractor's place of business. Contractor shall retain all rccords rclating to the pcrromancc
of this Contract for t-ivc (5 ) years aitcr the end of the temi c>f this Contract.

r

AR?ICLE Xl!
MisceJlaneous

A. All Articlcs sha}l bc constnied as read, and no limitation sml be placed on ax*y Article by virtue
or its dascriptive heading.

4
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B try noticcs 'or re:rts by one Party to' thc othcr Party under !his Contract sha)l 'bi m;ic in
writing, €o jhe address shown in the first paragraph of this Contmct, or to such o(hcr address as
may be &signated in mting by one Party to (he other. Notices sha?l be cffective whcri teccivcd
ir pcrsonally delivered, or lhrec days after mailing if mailed.

C. r(anypanofthisContractisiieldtobevoid,againstpublicpoljcyorillegalthebalanccofthis
Contract shall continue to be valid and binding.

D. This Contract shall be governai and construed in accordance with thc laws of the
Cornmonuealth of Kentuiky.

E.

F.

G.

No delay or omission by either Party in cxcrcisir4g any right under 41 operak as athisJ
ctJlwaiver of that or any other right or aprcwnt a simrlar ;ubsequcnt acr p§g a violation
<'Jof this Contract.

k

At all times durixig the tcrrn of this contmct, C( i% 04 the Farnily
Mucatiorial-Rights'and-Privacy-Act-of ?974. alf Conuac%7ssto stu:dent records,Contractor -shalrlimit its ernployees' accao to thosc-J t% for whom accas is
he?ws*:ial *ts vs?tsvvn th;ie r tsts*'r?* ? ?essential to pcrform this Contract.

W14
'l

Contractor shall be in continuous compliance %4f KRS Chapters 136, 139,wi'!l
ontrm141, 337, 338, 341 mid 342 thai apply to the Con or for thc duration of this
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SPECIFICATIONS

The Jefferson County Public Schools ("JCPS") is interested in procuring a centralized, off-the-shelf enterprise Visitor Management
Software System ("System"), to track and mariage visitor check-in and check-out at JCPS schools @nd various other JCPS facilities
throughout the Jefferson County Public School District. The System must integrate with the core infrastructure as specified. The System
must support l 76+ distinct locations, wjth the ability to provide unified reporting across these locations via a centralized management
console. Further, the management and administration of this System shall be centralized, with the ability to delegate appropriate
permissions to users at each location, across multiple user roles.

The proposed System must contain the following technical and functionality requirements:

Technical Requirements
* Web based client (browser agnostic)

Mobile device friendly interface
Touch screen friendly
Compatible with enterprise database MS SQL Server 2014 or above
Integrate with Active Directory for authentication of district users
Must provide multiple access roles for security and segregation of responsibilities within the system
If the system is on premise, it should be able to run inside IIS
Centralized system management, drill-down reporting interface with customizable role based security
Ability to query and export data in multiple formats
System must incorporate extensive reporting capabilities for querying visitor logs and the ability to query data based on various
parameters.

If on premise, the System must have ability to backup and restore data
Technical and customer support (8x365)

*

*

*

*

*

*

*

Functionality Requirements
* Must provide check in/check out functionality for Visitors/Volunteers, in one easy-to-use and intuitive screen

Ability to query household / guardian information from Infinite Campus in real time
Must be able to scan & OCR drivers/state ID license and make information reportable
Must capture photograph of person
Must be able to print appropriate visitor badge with captured photograph and information
Must be able to reuse existing peripherals including Dymo printers and Biometric scanners
Signature pad capable
Must support multiple languages
Ability to print Late/Tardy Passes (for students)
Must have alert capability for visitors left in facility beyond a certain time (overstay time)
Furnish emergency list and reports for evacuations
Ability to query Sex Offender Check (an optional feature that each individual site may purchase)
Districtwide ability to blacklist (deny access) individuals accessible by all locations
Ability to issue hall passes and track student movement in school
Kiosk version

Send alert via multiple mediums

*

*

*

*

*

*

*

@

*

*

*

*

*

*

*

The awarded Contractor must comply with the following legal requirements:

Legal Requirements
* Contractor must possess and maintain all JCPS mandated insurance requirements (See Insurance Requirement Attachment)

If data is stored outside of the JCPS network, Contractor must provide SOC-2/3 certification or equivalent, and keep the same
current as Iong as Contractor provides services to JCPS
Must comply with the requirements of KY HB s and KY HB 232 with regards to data breach notification and encryaption

*

*
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PROPOSAL No. 3075

CERTIFICATE OF INSURANCE REQUIREMENT

Failure to submit the certificate of insurance with your response ? subject your proposal to rejection. The contractor
shall furnish a certificate of insurance in accordance with the requirements set forth below. The contractor agrees that
required insurance shall not be cancelled or allowed to lapse during the term of any awarded contract without prior written
notification to Jefferson County Public School. The certificate ot?insurance shall name the Board ota Education ot? .lefferson
Ccium)' as additi?inal insured in the Descripti?in of Operations secticin of the Certificate oflnsurance which shall read:

Board or Education ot?leffersoii (?ounty
Attn: Insui-ance/Real Estate Dept.
3332 Netsburg Road
Louisville. Kentuck> 40218

INSURANCE REQUIREMENTS:
CONTRACTOR'S LIABILITY INSURANCE:

The insurance required shall be written for not less than the following limits or greater if required by law:

1. Workers Compensation:
a. State

b. Applicable Federal (e.g. Longshoreman's)
c. Employer's Liability

Statutory
Statutory
$100,000.00

2. Comprehensive or Commercial General Liability (including Premises-Operations; Independent Contractor's
Protection; Product Liability and Completed Operations; Broad Form Property Damage):
a. GeneralAggregate(ExceptProducts-CompletedOperations) $2,000,000.00
b. Products-Completed Operations Aggregate $1,000,000.00
c. Personal/AdvertisingInjury(PerPerson/Organization) $1,000,000.00
d. EachOccurrence(BodilyJnjuryandPropertyDamage) $1,000,000.00
e. Limit per Person Medical Expense $ 5,000.00
f. Exclusions of Property in Contractor's Care, Custody or Control will be eliminated.
g. Property Damage Liability Insurance will provide coverage for explosion, collapse and underground damage.

3. Contractual Liability:
a. General Aggregate:
b. Each Occurrence (Bodily Injury and Property Damage)

$2,000,000.00
$1 ,ooo,ooo.oo

4. Automobile Liability: (Coi'nmercial Vehicles)
a. BodilyJnjury (Combinedsinglelimit)
b. Property Damage (Combined single limit)
c. Commercial Buses

$ 20,000.00
$1 ,ooo,ooo.oo

$10,000,000.00

s. ProfessionalLiability(forarchitecturalorconstructionmanagementservices)
Per occurrence $1 ,ooo,ooo.oo
Annual aggregate $2,000,000.00

6. Cyber Insurance: (If contractual requirement exists.) $5,000,000.00

(Per 702 K?AR 4:160. Capital construction, sections 4 & 5) Revised 1/4/16
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PROPOSAL No. 3075

PROPOSAL FOR

VISITOR MANAGEMENT SOFTWARE SOLUTION

TO: Ken Popplewell
Director of Purchasing
Jefferson County Public Schools
C. B. Young, Jr., Service Center
3001 Crittenden Drive

Louisville, KY 40209-1104

Attached to this PROPOSAL ?, offeror is to outline his proposal including (but not limited to) the information
requested on the following pages.

NO COSTS ARE TO BE INCLUDED ON THE PROPOSAL FORMS. THE COSTS ARF, TO BE LISTED ON THE
COST SCHEDULE FORMS.

THE PROPOSAL FORMS ARE TO BE SUBMITTED IN THE LARGE ENVELOPE FURNISHED WITH THIS
PROPOSAL.

THIS PROPOSAL SUBMITTED BY:

*(Signature of Proposer)

(lsJame of Proposer - Print Legibly)

(Address of Proposer)

Date Telephone

Area Code

(Name of Company)

NOTE: A facsimile signat?ire must be initialed in ink.

* If this form is not signed bid ? be rejected.
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PROPOSAL No. 3075

RESPONSES

Provide an introductory letter giving a brief description of scope, limitations and exceptions (operational and equipment), and
the extent of what is to be proposed.

Provide the following documentation:

1. Please provide a detailed outline of the proposed System's features, benefits, and operational requirements.

2. Describe the proposed System's architecture and scaling ability.

3. Providethreeverifiablereferences(currentproductusers).
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PROPOSAL No. 3075

VENDOR CHECKLIST

Please ensure that you have submitted each of the following documents with your response.

SUBMIT IN ADVANCE:

Pre-Proposal Questions (Page 5)

SUBMIT IN LARGE ENVELOPE (do not include ? pricing i4ormation)

Certificate of Insurance Requirement (Page 23)
Proposal Form (Page 24)
Responses (Page 25)
Completed Vendor Checklist (Page 26)
Resident Vendor Affidavit - if applicable (Page 27)
Required Vendor Information (Page 28)
Bidder must submit a current W-9 form with response

SUBMIT IN SEALED SMALL ENVELOPE:

Cost Schedule Cover Form (Page 29)
Cost Schedule Form with Pricing (Page 30)
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PROPOSAL No. 3075

REQUIRED AFFIDAVIT FOR BIDDERS, OFFERORS AND CONTRACTORS
CLAIMING RESIDENT BIDDER STATUS

7f claiming Kentucky residency status, this completed form must be NOTARIZED and submitted with your response.

Purchasing/Bid Department
C. B. Young, Jr., Service Center
3001 Crittenden Drive

Louisville,Kentucky40209 Phone: (502)485-3167 Fax: (502)485-6446

FOR BIDS AND CONTRACTS IN GENERAL:

The bidder or offeror hereby swears and affirms under penalty of perjury that, in accordance with KRS 45A.494(2), the entity
bidding is an individual, partnership, association, corporation, or other business entity that, on the date the contract is first
advertised or announced as available for bidding:

1 . Is authorized to transact business in the Commonwealth;
2. Has for one year prior to and through the date of advertisement

a. Filed Kentucky corporate income taxes;
b. Made payments to the Kentucky unemployment insurance fund established in KRS 341 .49; and
c. Maintained a Kentucky workers' compensation policy in effect.

Jefferson County Public Schools reserves the right to request documentation supporting a bidder's claim of resident bidder
status. Failure to provide such documentation upon request shall result in disqualification of the bidder or contract termination.

Signature Printed Name

Title Date

Company Name

Address

Subscribed and sworn to before me by
(Affiant) (Title)

of this .day of ,20
(Company Name)

Notary Public

[seal of notary] My commission expires:
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PROPOSAL No. 3075

REQUIRED VENDOR INFOR?MATION

It is impoffant that you supply the following information and submit this form with your response.

Purchasing/Bid Department
C. B. Young, Jr., Service Center
3001 Crittenden Drive

Louisville, Kentucky 40209
Phone: (502)485-3167
Fax: (502)485-6446

1 . The Jefferson County Board of Education needs confirmation from your company of compliance and/or
intent to comply with the Federal, State, Local and Board regulations for Non-Discrimination on any and
all contracts awarded by the Board of Education. We need to know if your company is a minority owned
business.

(a) Is your company complying with Federal regulation relating to Non-Discrimination? Yes No

(b) Is your company a minority owned business? Yes No??

2. Provide your company's complete PURCHASE ORDER MAILING ADDRESS information including name of
company, street and/or p.o. Box, city, state, zip code and phone number.

3. Provide your company's complete PAYMENT REMIT ADDRESS information including name of company,
street and/or p.o. Box, city, state, zip code and phone number.

4. Provide a completed current W-9 Form with your response.

NOTES:

By submitting a response vendor confirms they have read, understand, and agree to all terms and conditions of
this Request for Proposal.

Failure to provide all required information may subject your proposal to rejection.
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PROPOSAL No. 3075

COST SCHEDULE COVER FORM

COMPETITIVE NEGOTIATION FOR VISITOR MANAGEMENT SOFTWARE SOLUTION

TO: Ken Popplewell
Director of Purchasing
Jefferson County Public Schools
C. B. Young, Jr., Service Center
3001 Crittenden Drive

Louisville, Kentucky 40209-1104

These Cost Schedule Forms shall be used in submitting a quote for the services listed herein. Copies will be furnished upon
request by the authority issuing the Contract Documents.

THE ? SCHEDULE FORMS ARE TO BE SUBMITTED IN THE SMALL ENVELOPE FURNISHED WITH THIS
PROPOSAL.

THIS PROPOSAL SUBMITTED BY:

*(Signature of Proposer)

(Name of Proposer - Print Legibly)

(Address of Proposer)

Date Telephone

Area Code

(Name of Company)

NOTE: A facsimile signature must be initialed in ink.

The Proposer hereby acknowledges receipt of the following addenda:

Addendum No. Dated Addendum No.

Addendum No. Dated Addendum No.

(If none has been issued and received, insert the word, "none.")

* If this form is not signed bid ? be rejected.

Dated

' Dated
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PROPOSAL No. 3075

COST SCHEDULE FORM

Notes:

The bid shall be awarded to the best evaluated offeror submitting a proposal meeting all specifications and conditions as
outlined in this request for proposal.

Failure to provide all required information may subject your bid to rejection.

Bids must be typewritten or printed neatly in ink. If information cannot be easily determined, your bid shall be
subject to rejection.

No alternate bids will be accepted. Only one bid ? item will be accepted on this ?.

This form is to be used to submit pricing information. It must be in a separately sealed envelope from the rest of the
submission. Cost is reviewed in the second phase of the evaluation process.

Annual district-wide subscription cost for basic Visitor Management Software System
supporting 176+ locations.
(This price must include all software updates and enhancements that may be
made available to any product users during the initial subscription period and
any renewal periods.)

$ per year

Annual individual price for subscription to Sex Offender Registry.
(This option must be available as an option to be purchased by each individual
location. The price must include all updates and enhancements that may be
made available to any product users during the initial subscription period and
any renewal periods.)

$ per year
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